
United Nations 

GENERAL 
ASSEMBLY 
TWENTY-SECOND SESSION 

Official Records 

SPECIAL POLITICAL COMMITTEE, 561st 
MEETING 

Tuesday, 7 November 1967, 
at 3.2!5 p.m. 

NEW YORK 

-------------------------------------------------------------------------
CONTENTS 

Agenda item 3!5: 
The policies of apartheid of the Government 

of the Republic of South Africa (continued): 
(~) Report of the Special Committee on the 

Policies of Apartheid of the Government 
of the Republic of South Africa; 

Page 

(!!) Report of the Secretary-General. • • • • . • !53 

Chairman: Mr. Humberto LOPEZ VILLAMIL 
(Honduras). 

AGENDA ITEM 35 

The policies of a~artheid of the Government of the 
Republic of Sout Africa (~ontinued) (A/6688,A/6818 
and (orr .l ): 

(a) Report of the Special Committee on the Policies 
of Apartheid of the Government of the Republic 
of South Africa (A/6864 and Add.l ); 

(b) Report of the Secretary-General (A/6825, A/6873 
and Corr.l) 

1. Mr. SHEVCHENKO (Ukrainian Soviet Socialist Re
public) noted with gratification the tributes which 
numerous delegations had paid to the Soviet Union 
and the Ukrainian Soviet Socialist Republic on the 
occasion of the fiftieth anniversary of the October 
Socialist Revolution, and thanked those delegations. 

2. His country had always strongly opposed the ex
ploitation and inequality of races and peoples. The 
Ukrainian people, whatever their origin, enjoyed equal 
rights in all fields; the problems of exploitation and 
of nationalities had been solved once and for all. For 
that reason the Ukrainian Soviet Socialist Republic had 
never ceased to condemn the policy of the racist 
Government of South Africa and to give full support to 
the relevant resolutions of the General Assembly. It 
considered that it was its duty faithfully to apply the 
anti-apartheid resolutions adopted by the General As
sembly and the Security Council. In the resolutions it 
had adopted after the Sharpeville massacre in 1960, 
the General Assembly had addressed an appeal to the 
States Members of the United Nations to take specific 
measures with a view to combating the policy of 
apartheid, including breaking off trade relations with 
South Africa and applying an embargo on shipments 
of arms to it. Yet South Africa was obviously inten
sifying its segregationist policy and it lacked neither 
weapons, nor military equipment nor partners for 
achieving its ends. It was therefore essential, as the 
great majority of States Members of the United Nations 
agreed, that the political, economic and other sane-

53 

tions recommended by the General Assembly should 
be applied with the utmost strictness and firmness. 
The application of those measures was, above all, in 
line with the spirit and letter of the United Nations 
Charter and with the objectives pursued by the peoples 
which had created the Organization. For their pa.rt, 
the Ukrainian people, which had suffered under the 
yoke of fascism, would always respect the decisions 
of the United Nations which reflected the purposes and 
principles of the Charter. 

3. The concern of peace-loving peoples was due n0t 
only to the failure of South Africa to apply the resolu
tions on apartheid, but also to the fact that those 
resolutions were being flouted by certain States, 
founding Members of the United Nations, whichplaced 
their economic interests above the interests of man
kind. It was striking, to say the least, that the coun
tries which had voted for economic and other sanctions 
against South Africa in fact actively supported the 
racist r€lgime of that country. As the International 
Labour Organisation rightly pointed out in the Inter
national Labour Review, economic motives were be
hind all racial discrimination. Analysis of the role of 
foreign monopolies clearly showed that those mono
polies collaborated with South African capital in the 
shameless exploitation of t.he African population. The 
failure of the South African racists would mean the 
bankruptcy of the undertakings of those monopolies. 
That was precisely why the United Kingdom :iJ.nd the 
United States had invested enormous sums in South 
Africa; the abuse appeared even more flagrant in view 
of the fact that the United States monopolies earned 
more than $100 million in net profits in South Africa 
yearly, and United Kingdom undertakings, about $200 
million. Only the strict application by all countries 
of the sanctions adopted against South Africa would 
make it possible to combat the r€lgime in power in that 
country, whose economy was oriented primarily to
wards the foreign market. If the policy of apartheid 
had not given them tremendous advantages on the in
ternational market, the South Africans would be faced 
with bankruptcy or obliged to reconsider their policy. 

4. Peace-loving peoples were also seriously con
cerned at the co-operation of the revanchists of the 
Federal Republic of Germany with the South African 
racists. In that connexion he drew attention to the 
memorandum of the Afro-Asian Solidarity Committee 
in the German Democratic Republic, which provided 
convincing proof of a very cordial entente between 
Bonn and Pretoria. That fact, too, suggested that 
South Africa's racist policy could lead to the outbreak 
of a catastrophic war. 

5. As it had done in the past, his delegation endorsed 
the recommendations of the Special Committee on the 
Policies of Apartheid of the Government of Republic of 

A/SPC/SR.561 



54 General Assembly- Twenty-second Session- Special Political Committee 

South Africa (/6864, paras, 119-167), It continued to 
contribute to the assistance given to the victims and 
adversaries of apartheid, In that connexion, he would 
like to have more detailed information .regarding the 
use made of the resources of the United Nations Trust 
Fund for South Africa, 

6, His delegation was also convinced that the racist 
alliance between South Africa, Southern Rhodesia and 
Portugal must be taken into account in the preparation 
and application of any measures adopted against South 
Africa, for thost-> countries were combining their 
efforts to maintain colonialism and racism. That was 
confirmed only too cJ.e:uly ty the events taking: place 
in the Democratic Republic of the Congo. 

7, His delegation reaffirmed its condemnation of 
apartheid, which was incompatible with international 
law and constituted a threat to peace, and of the con
duct of South Africa's main trading partners, and also 
its support for the resolutions and recommendations 
of the General Assembly and the Security Council, It 
supported the struggle against apartheid and for in
dependence and appealed to all Member States to co
operate in the elimination of that odious practice and 
to support the national liberation movement. 

8. Mr. ABIDIA (Libya) recalled that on 16 December 
1966 the General Assembly had adopted its resolution 
2202 A (XXI) condemning the South African Govern
ment's policy of apartheid as a crime against humanity, 
reaffirming that the situation in South Africa was a 
threat to international peace and security, deploring 
the fact that some Member States had not applied its 
previous resolutions and requesting them to take 
urgent steps to facilitate effective action to secure 
the elimination of apartheid and to break off their 
economic and financial ties with South Africa. The 
General Conference of UNESCO at its fourteenth 
session and the Commission on Human Rights, at its 
twenty-third session, had adopted similar resolutions. 

9, The South African Government and its main trading 
partners not only ignored the United Nations resolu
tions but openly defied them. Apartheid was being in
tensified, and the trade, economic and military rela
tions between the South African Government and certain 
States Members of the United Nations, including three 
great Powers, continued to increase. Discriminatory 
laws succeeded one another, aggravating the racial 
segregation, oppression and persecution of the 14 
million Africans and Coloureds, What was even more 
serious was the fact that the South African Govern
ment was not satisfied merely with applying its poli
cies in South Africa; it was now exporting them to the 
neighbouring Territories of Southern Rhodesia, Angola 
and Mozambique, which were all under the domination 
of a white minority. As it emerged from the report 
of the International Seminar on Apartheid, Racial 
Discrimination and Colonialism in Southern Africa 
(A/6818 and Corr ,1), the South African regime had 
forged an alliance with the white supremacist regimes 
of southern Africa, The Seminar had concluded that the 
danger was not contined to South Africa, South West 
Africa, Southern Rhodesia, Angola and Mozambique, 
but that it also threatened the neighbourii!g independent 
African States. For some time South Africa had been 

building up its armed forces; the defence budget for 
1967/1968 was $358 million, of which a good part had 
been allocated to the purchase of weapons and military 
equipment, 

10. The issue of the similarity and the relationship 
between Israel and South Africa had been raised in 
the course of the general debate on apartheid, Explicit 
facts had been given and the Israel representative had 
repeatedly denied them, at the same time trying to 
practise apartheid in the Committee by discriminating 
in respect of freedom of speech and the very principles 
of law and justice, His delegation held the view that the 
regimes of Pretoria and Tel Aviv hadcertainfeatures 
in common. In both cases, the power was in the hands 
of European settJAr'l, who had always been supported 
by the West at the expense of the legitimate rights of 
the indigenous people of Sonth Africa and Palestine, 
The Special Political Committee had been discussing 
both apartheid and the problem of Palestine for years; 
in both cases constructive resolutions had remained a 
dead letter and had been rejected or challenged by the 
Governments of those two countries, which depended 
for their existence not on right but on might and pur
sued an aggressive colonial policy which constituted a 
threat to international peace and security. 

11, While South Africa was still building up its armed 
forces, Israel had already committed criminal aggres
sion against the Arabs and had occupied much of their 
land, If Israel should in one way or another be re
warded for its military conquest, surely that would be 
positive encouragement to the minority regimes in 
South Africa and Southern Rhodesia, and would be a 
very dangerous precedent. It was necessary to draw 
lessons from what had taken place in the Middle East, 
with respect to the situation in South Africa, The 
United Nations, nolens volens, had to face the chal
lenges, whether in South Africa, the Middle East or 
anywhere else, with firmness, courage and justice. 
It should present events, notwaitfortheiroccurrence, 
if it was to realize the hope of mankind to live in peace 
and justice. His delegation shared the view expressed 
by the Secretary-General in the introduction to his 
annual report on the work of the Organization, that 
"the effectiveness of the United Nations in exercising 
a significant influence towards a peaceful and just 
solution to the difficult problems in South Africa will 
depend essentially on the willingness and ability of 
the permanent members of the Security Council and 
the main trading partners of the Republic of South 
Africa to harmonize their positions and take more 
effective measures to persuade the South African 
Government to abandon its present course and seek 
a solution consistent with the Charter of the United 
Nations and the resolutions of the Security Council 
and the General Assembly" (see A/6701/ Add,1, 
para. 118). His delegation supported fully and without 
reservation the concluswns and recommendations of 
the Special Committee (A/6864, paras, 66-167), in
cluding the recommendation to the Security Council 
to consider the situation in South Africa without delay 
(ibid, para. 125). 

12, In conclusion, he extended to the Union of 
Soviet Socialist Republics his best wishes for pros
perity and success on the occasion of the fiftieth 
anniversary of the October Revolution, 



561st meeting- 7 November 1967 55 

13, Mr. MWEMBA (Zambia) said that his delegation 
had followed the Committee's discussions on apart
heid with keen interest, The sttuation resulting from 
the increasingly severe implementation of that policy 
by the South African minority r~gime constituted a 
growing threat to international peace and security; 
and it was therefore only natural for men of good-.vill 
everywhere to be preoccupied with an issue of such 
importance, The policy of racial segregation was a 
challenge to the conscience of all mankind, The 
United Nations must at once take practical measures 
to prevent ~- racial conflict in southern Africa, The 
South African Government had defied the Organiza
tion and was continuing to disregard its resolutions, 
claiming that South Africa was a paradise for all 
races. That attitude was clearly demonstrated in 
the letter dated 13 July 1967 from the Permanent 
Representative of South Africa to the United Nations 
addressed to the Secretary--General (see A/6C88), 
The true situation had been clearly depicted in the 
report of the Special Committee on Apartheid (A/6864 
and Add,1), In South Africa the Whites, regardless of 
their origin, enjoyed political and economic rights 
and were regarded as human beings, while the non
Whites had no rights whatsoever, 

14. The abominable policy of aparth~j_d had now been 
imposed on the Territory of South West Africa, in 
disregard of General Assembly resolution 2145 (XXI), 
South Africa had no more right to impose her ad
ministration on the Territory of South West Africa 
than to introduce the policy of apartheid there. The 
United Nations should therefore take steps to restore 
the Territory to its rightful owners, 

15, His delegation appealed to the great Powers to 
use their influence with -south Africa to avoid a 
catastrophe, The situation in Southern Rhodesia also 
gave grounds for serious concern, In August 1967 
the South African police had intervened openly against 
the Zimbabwe people, As a result of its geographical 
location, Zambia was now in a dangerous position and 
was being threatened by the South African Govern
ment, although it was a peace-loving nation which 
had never tlir':'latened any of its neighbours. The 
problem of ·armed resistance which South Africa 
was now facing was a problem which South Africa 
had itself created. 

16, As everyone knew, Zambia was an enemy of 
colonialism and a champion of the fundamental free
doms. It believed that such problems should be 
settled by peaceful means, But the situation in South 
Africa was so grave that the United Nations could 
not afford to be complacent about it, Pretoria, 
Salisbury and Lisbon were now undertaking joint 
military operations against the freedom fighters in 
southern Africa and had even made incursions into 
Zambia, thereby committing a serious breach of 
the rules of international behaviour. 

17, The time for talking was long past. The United 
Nations should now take immediate action to remedy 
the precarious situation in South Africa, The firm 
application of economic sanctions should force the 
South African Government to abandon its inhuman 
policy of apartheid, 

Mr. Lannung (Denmark), Vice-Chairman, took the 
Chair. 

18, Mr. BANZAR (Mongolia) warmly congratulated 
the Union of Soviet Socialist Republies a11d the 
Byelorussian and Ukrainian Soviet Soci.alist nepul::.
lics on the fHtieth anniversary of the OctobPr S0-< 
cialist Revolution. 

19, He noted with regret that no progress had been 
made in the eradication of apartheid in South Africa, 
although the United Nations had been discussing the 
problem for twenty years, Contrary to the claims 
made by the colonizers, apartheid was not a domestic 
affair of South Africa, The United Nations and world 
opinion had condemned it as a crime against humanity, 
Nevertheless it was still being used by the imperialist 
Powers as an instrument for destroying the national 
liberation movements of the colonial peoples and for 
threatening international peace and security, The 
racist minority in South Africa was continuing to 
oppress the indigenous population; it was reinforcing 
its military and political measures, and adopting new 
laws directed against patriotic organizations. South 
Africa had thus become a criminal State, which was 
flouting the fundamental rules and principles of 
international law and the relevant declarations and 
conventions, 

20, The policies of apartheid had had disastrous 
consequences in all fields, whether education, in
dustrial production, agriculture or the development 
of natural resources, in which the indigenous popu
lation was deprived of its legitimate rights. In recent 
years South Africa had enlarged its armed forces and 
increased its milit::try budget largely with the assis
tance of international imperialism, which viewed 
racism as a bastion of colonialism in the African 
continent, Disregarding the sanctions adopted by the 
United Nations, South Africa's main trading part
ners, particularly the United States, the United 
Kingdom and the Federal Republic of Germany, were 
still providing economic and military assistance to 
the racist regime in Pretoria. West Germany, for 
instance, regarded South Africa as a launching site 
for its rockets; and South Africa, in turn, was sup
plying it with uranium ore, 

21. Obviously, therefore, West Germany had every
thing to gain from the continued existence of the racist 
and colonial regimes in southern Africa. With assis
tance from North Atlantic Treaty Organization coun
tries, South Africa was militarizing the country on a 
large scale, The apartheid r~gime was threatening 
the existence not only of the South African people, but 
of all Africans. The military, economic and political 
alliance of the racist regimes in southern Africa was 
extending its influence all over the continent, and 
threatening the development of other African coun
tries, as well as the national liberation movements 
of peoples still under the colonial yoke. For instance, 
agreements affecting economic and military activities 
and foreign policy had recently been concluded between 
South Africa, Portugal and Southern Rhodesia. In 
particular, a special corps of 10,000 men had been 
formed in South Africa to "protect" Southern Rhodesia, 
Economic and military co-operation between South 
Africa and Southern Rhodesia was paving the way for 



56 General Assembly - Twenty-&econd Session - Special Political Committee 

the political merger of the two racist regimes, which 
would give southern Africa an extremely powerful 
strategic potential. 

22. The General Assembly must condemn the Powers 
which wf'-:-e stn; maintaining political and economic 
;c-c:·l , . s vti th South Africa in defiance of tb~ Semn·ity 
Cou11eii.',s decisions. All States MembP.rs of tht' United 
·.rap, ·5 shr .. :r} scrupulously col'Ylply with thos·: :i.Pc'
,:~c.r , ,,d "pply econnwic Hnd other sa11ctions ap;ainst 
the ·:o- t.h Af:"i( 1;.: ·:0vernment. His own Gover11rnent 
r?· ~-,·_H'( lf' ~'·jy -<:inrl with South Atriea or 
Souther~; ~~h· i _.;,h, '3.:\d ;· had f'·'·Jtrihrlted t0 the 
United Na;;ions T:cu..,' Fr·ncl :.w S::11th Ar'ricl'. Hi" d• ·Jt>~ 
gation was prepr..red to "'tFJ•·-t ·::,· ~,· .. ,, rc ' . .J<;tPn 

the end of the odious practir:•e n: §£.'::.~-. __ ~·. 

23. Mrs. GAVRILC'VA (Bulgaria) said that apartheiJ 
was one of the most important problem~s T1~the 
present-day world, and was not merely a domestic 
affair of South Africa. It was a challenge to t~oe sp1rit 
of modern times and to the human raue as a whole, 
But, apart from the fact that it was morally offensive 
and a challenge to the prestige of the l1nlted Nations, 
it was important in other senses as well, It was im
peding the harmonious development of AL:ican StatPf' 
which had achieved freedom and independence; it 
was threatening international peace and secnri!y and 
might precipitate a thit·d world WD!'. 

24, The purpose of the recent increase in the South 
African and Southern Rhodesian military and pollee 
forces was not only to annihilate the indigenous 
African population, but also to extend the n1le of 
the white racists to the territories of othPr countries 
in southern Africa, But the South African Government 
was not the only culprit. The Western imperialist 
Powers were also largely to blame for supporting the 
apartheid r€gime in disregard of the many United 
Nations resolutions on the subject. Her delegation 
wished to congratulate the various United Nations 
bodies which had made valiant efforts to solve the 
problem and particularly the Special Committee on 
the Policies of Apartheid of the Government of the 
Republic of South Africa. It also thanked the Govern
ments of the United Republic of Tanzania and Zambia 
for helping to arrange the International Seminar on 
Apartheid. 

25, Despite all those efforts, the fact remained that 
the situation in South Africa was deteriorating. New 
laws had been adopted to oppress the indigenous popu
lation, which would long since have found the capability 
and the strength to free itself from the colonial yoke, 
had it not been for the assistance that the racist r~gime 
was receiving from the imperialist Powers. Was 
it not assistance from that quarter which had de
feated the purpose of all the United Nations decisions 
and resolutions? Although they voted for such resolu
tions, the imperialist Powers wereprovidingmaterial 
and moral support to the South Afriean racists and 
were accomplices in the barbarous exploitation of 
the non-white population. Failure to fulfil undertakings 
assumed under United Nations decisions and recom
mendations would seriously affect events in other 
parts of the world, and the work of the Organization 
itself. The Western Powers which were trading with 
South Africa should therefore break off their tra.de 

relations with it anJ strictly apply the embargs GP 

arms deliveries to South Afr!ca. The Security Council 
anrl oiher United Nations organsdidnotlackt.he m~ans 
to force South Afl'ica's tra(li!Jgpartners t0comply'!'>'ith 
United Nations decisions and resolutions. An inter
mttirJn8l iJublieity e~~.:rnpa1P~1 against apar\heid and 
er,tonia)iSP'l Sh011ld DOW bP on:;amzed; at.l<Jlt.was es
<;eurial t" strss6 .:r,ce 8~·;ain the need ~' provide 
11ssi.shmce to rut ]J'· ·r!ss ~hcaugl;cmt lite world which 
·"-'·="'"' 'Jpposipg th•:> poli•c;~,, :,f t'panfleid, e<s well as to 
thP "ictims of th<Jt odi·mc; J1rar~tice-a~(f tr> the national 
lilJerBtion moVP1n·)n\·s of ch·: Afric:dlt CJnl.!ie'lt. 

26, Her deleg~.ti.1r, wisJ>et1 to exiP"es3 its ,:1ra1 aud 
si ··<>:·co eongratul::ttions , .. , ~he Tl;-i" .,fS .. JvietSocialist 
lU.'lJur:,, . ..,, arc! ,., thP 'P.ye1orussiau -:md t'kraini&.n 
Sr:n:=:t Soc:i(~_.l<:i ":~nb;lc:' ... ) (_'n t· :._l occBsir:-yl of the 
fiftieth anniversa!·-. '• '.!1~) .:..·et;''•erS'.c1alist. flc~rplution. 

27,. Mr, GHAliS (Afghani.<::,n) exterded his fe!lcit't
hons to the delegatir,n of ch-3 Umon of Socialist Re
publics on the fiftieth a.nniversary of the October 
Revolution, He congratulated the Special Committee 
on its report (A/6864 and Add.l) which was most 
enlightening. The report gave a faithful def~criptiJn 
o•' apartheid and its effc:.;t ·' on the non-white inhabi
' 1nts oTSo.uth Africa, The situation in South Africa, 
which was 'l bastic:; of racial segregation, was pro
gres:::i ve ly deteriorating, and the policies of ~}Jartheid 
had become more virulent than ever. The South African 
authorities, defying the United Nations resolutions, 
which they considered an interference in the coun
try 1s domestic affairs, were with increasing efficiency 
depriving the non-while inhabitants of the country of 
all rights, 1t was of Ji.ttle moment to the South African 
Government that its pollcies conflicted with the prin
ciples of the Charter cf the United Nations and with 
all the declarations and conventions -::oncerninghuman 
rights and the elimination ot racial discrimination. 
When the Pnited Nations Charter, the Universal Decla
ration of Human Rights, and the Conventions regarding 
human rights had come into being, manifestations of 
rscial discrimination, such as apartheid, had ceased 
to be a matter of domestic concern only. They had 
become an international preoccupation. The Govern
ment of South Africa was waging an extensive pro
apartheid propaganda campaign to win the sympathy 
0fforeign countr1es, 

28. It would be well for the international community 
to inform world opinion in detail of the horrors of 
apa!:_!heid-for example, during the International Con
ference on Human Rights to be held at Teheran in 
1968-and of the considerable work done by the United 
Nations to combat that evil. New repressive laws, 
such as the Group Areas Act and the Terrorism Act 
of 1967, continually streagthened the formidable legal 
apparatus used by the South African Government to 
persecute the non-white population, The Terrorism 
Act of 1967 was a blanket authorization for the Govern
ment to deal at will with any opponent of apartheid, 
whom it had only to term a "terrorist". The applica
tion of those laws was backed by a powerful military 
machine, which was continually g-rowing stronger be
cause the arms embargo initiated by the Security 
Council had been repeatedly flouted, The alliance 
between South Africa. Portugal and the illegal Salis-



56lst meeting- 7 November 1967 57 

bury r~girne bd strengthened the hand l'f the South 
,\fri.can Government i_n itR fight against the opponents 
of aparthei9- inside the country and had enabled it to 
play a greater part in measures against the national 
liberation movements in other parts of southern Africa. 
It wa:; particularly disturbing that South African and 
R.hry:lesi?.n forces hall engaged ut joint operations 
figainst South. African and Zimbabwe nattonalists in 
South \~.'est Africa and Southern Rhodesia. 

2tl. Aga.in, the 'c0lume of trade between South Africa 
'ind ~ertain of itq major trading partners had increased 
and other c0untries had begun to trade with South Africa 
for the first time, de'3pite the General Assembly's ad
monition. It was to he expected that, faced with the 
inflexrJle altitude of the South African Government, 
the nationalists in that country would eventually rally 
all the forces they c.:ould muster and claim their rights 
by violence. His delegation considered that the South 
Af:-i0an Government's policy wo'.lld, in the long run, 
prove just as harmful t0 the white settlers as to the 
non-white ma.jority of the population, 

30. In order to solve the prcblem of apartheid peace
fully, the international community must co-ordinate 
its effort and intensify its action, and in particular 
the Security Council should initiate mandatory econo
mic sanctions. As the Secretary-General had pointed 
out in a passage of the introduction to his annual re
port which had already been quoted by other repre
sentatives, it was essentially the attitude of South 
Africa's main trading partners that would determine 
the outcome of efforts to that end (see A/6701/ Add,1, 
para. 118). In conclusion, he paid a tri!:mte to the In
ternational Seminar on Apartheid held at Kitwe, 
Zambia, from 25 July to 4 August 1967, for its magni
ficent contribution to the common task. 

31. Mr. HOVEYDA (Iran) congratulated the delegation 
of the Union of Soviet Socialist Republics on the fiftieth 
anniversary of the October Revolution. He wondered to 
what extent speeches could stem the continually in
creasing tide of misery and suffering which continued 
to over whelm the non-white peoples of southern Africa. 
For more than twenty years, apartheid had been regu
larly discussed by the Special Political Committee, 
which one speaker had recently compared to a huge 
graveyard for problems which the United Nations 
had been unable to solve. Despite the hopes already 
raised, the situation had consistently deteriorated. 
Yet, although everything had been said, i.t was neces
sary to repeat it. In the matters with which the Com
mittee was concerned, the whole of mankind must 
continually search its conscience. 

32. It was intolerable that, at a time when the twen
tieth anniversary of the Uni versa! Declaration of 
Human Rights was being celebrated, the negation of 
those very ri.ghts should be consecrated by law in 
defiance of the very principles of the Charter of the 
United Nations. Apartheid was a terrible blemish on 
contemporary ci vi.lization, The negative attitude of the 
South African Government, which continued to turn a 
deaf ear to the repeated appeals of the international 
community, could only oe deplored. Apartheid was an 
unacceptable reaction to the clash of races !lnd groups 
and that policy was itself one of the major causes of 
such clashes. 

-----~ 

33. Mr. Lewis Nkosi, the South African negro writer, 
had recently analysed the cultural stagnation and de
generation resulting from the fact that the white com
munity in South Africa was stubbornly trying to adapt 
its existence to policies which, far from being rea
sonable, appeared not only impractical but also in
sane. In the modern world, words and cm-rencies alike 
depreciated, but there was irony-unconscious, it was 
to be hoped-in the term "separate development". It 
seemed as if the white communities in southern Africa 
had established a virtual monopoly of blindness. Now
adays, n::1.tions and peoples were interdependent. As 
the Shah of Iran had recently written, the development 
of the human community towards unity and the elimi
nation of discrimination and disFutes was something 
which would inevitably be achieved, as history 
demanded. 

34. His Government and people had always opposed 
any form of racialism and had never ceased to ex
press anger at the policies of apartheid. His cot~ntry 
had contributed to the United Nations Trust Fund for 
South Africa, the educational and training programme 
:i'or E.:outh Africans and other bodies. It was to be hoped 
that the present discussion in the Committee would 
lead to closer co-operation against the evil policies 
of apartheid; it must not be forgotten that millions of 
suffering people looked to the Committee for the at
tainment of their legitimate rights. 

35" Mr. BARROMI (Israel), exercising his right of 
reply, insisted on a formal explanation of the allega
tion by the Libyan representative that he, the repre
sentative of l.srael, was practising ~artheid in the 
Committee. He also wished to know whether freedom 
of speech was understood to mean that the verbal ex
cesses of certain speake-rs should be endured with 
passivity. 

36, As to the simila:oity between the white popula
tion of South Africa and that of Israel, both of which 
had ::orne from Europe, there were many other 
Israelis who had been born in Africa, including 
Libya, but persecution had forced them to come to 
Israel. With regard to Israel's alleged non-compliance 
with United Nations resolutions, he agreed that non
compliance was fraught with dangers for the future 
of the Organization but he wished to recall that in 
1948 the representative of Egypt in the Security 
Council, li&ting various resolutions addressed to 
c::mntries and G'Jvernments, and in particular to 
the Government of South Africa, that had not been 
implemented, had stated that no one could say that 
compliance with resolutions was imperative or that 
the Sta~es which did not comply were undermining 
the very foundations of the Organization, In other 
words, the Egyptian representative had used the 
very example of South Africa to justify the refusal 
of his country to comply with resolutions, in viola
tion of the Charter of the United Nations, Such were 
the sources of the crisis of confidence facing the 
Organization, Libya, which had been admitted to 
membership in the United Nations with th'c: help of 
Israel 13 vote, could have served the ca. ;e of in
ternational law by advising other Arab States to 
seek the road to peace, However, it had preferred 
to follow them and to help them along the paths of 
violence and belligerency, and now, once more, it 



58 General Assembly - Twenty-second Session - Special Political Committee 

had not availed itself of a propitious moment to 
change its language and its style. 

37. Mr. MOURSI (Morocco) said that the repre
sentative of Israel was engaged in a verbal escala
tion that was hindering the Committee's work. The 
similarities between the r€lgimes of South Africa 
and Israel were undeniable, since both were illegi
timate, being based on usurpation, force and con
quest, and on contempt for and exploitation of in
digenous populations. Zionism, which was an ersatz 
nazism, and apartheid were spiritual offspring of 
the Third Reich. He reserved the right to dwell at 
greater length on that point. 

38. Mr. ABIDIA (Libya) said that the Israel repre
sentative, faced with the facts about the similarity 
between Zionism and apartheid, had tried to mislead 
the Committee and deny the facts and had made a 
groundless accusation against Libya. Israel's record 
of bloodshed, torture and crimes against the people 
of Palestine was well known, as was his own country's 
blameless record. Libya had always respected its 
obligations as a State Member of the United Nations. 
Until the advent of Zionism, Jews living in Arab 
countries had not suffered persecution, but following 
the brutal aggression committed in Palestine there 
had no longer been any place for Zionists in a badly 
shaken Arab world. 

39. The Israel representative should produce evi
dence to support his allegations about massacres in 
Libya. The Jews who had left Libya had done so 
voluntarily, while some had remained and enjoyed 
all the rights of citizenship, although the same could 
hardly be said for the Arab minority in Israel. It 
was impossible to forget that a million and a half 
Palestine Arabs, the indigenous people of Palestine, 
had been deprived of their country, homes and 
property by the Israelis. 

40. He reiterated that there were definite similari
ties between the r~gimes of Pretoria and Tel Aviv, 
and that the peoples of Palestine and South Africa 
had many interests in common. He reserved his right 
to speak again in the debate. 

41. Mr. F ATT AL (Syria), exercising his right of 
reply, deplored Israel's obstructive attitude and 
said that he wished to refute some of the allegations 
made by the representative of Israel at the previous 

Litho in U.N. 

meeting. Syria had never committed aggression against 
anyone; since 1955, it had followed a policy of non
alignment. ~n contrast, Israel had been charged with 
aggression in a resolution of the Security Council. The 
representative of Israel was merely the spokesman 
for foreign monopolies, whereas Syria was a country 
of the most complete freedom. The words of the Israel 
Minister of Defence were sufficient to show that 
Zionism was not far removed from apartheid. Mr. 
Dayan had stated on 11 June 1967 that economically 
Israel could absorb the Arabs, but that that would 
lead to a bi-national State, which was not in accordance 
with Israel's future plans. 

42. The alleged "defeat" to which the representative 
of Israel had referred had only occurred after Syria, 
at the same time as Israel, had accepted the Security 
Council resolution. If that was a defeat, it was the 
Security Council that Israel had defeated. 

43. Mr. BARROMI (Israel), replying to the Libyan 
representative's request for evidence, said that the 
June 1967 massacres had taken place quite openly 
before representatives of the world Press, and re
ports about them had been published in the 17 June 
edition of the daily newspaper La Stampa. 

44. Mr. ABIDIA (Libya), exercising his right of 
reply, said that he had evidence which refuted the 
allegations of the representative of Israel, and was 
contained, in particular, in the report of the Inter
national Red Cross, which had sent investigators to 
Libya at the request of the Libyan Government and had 
concluded that the rules of persecution were ground
less. that the Libyan Government had done everything 
to protect foreign communities, including the Jewish 
community, and that all of them were treated equally. 

45. Mr. BARROMI (Israel) said that he reserved the 
right to produce the text of the report of the Inter
national Red Cross. 

46. The CHAIRMAN, speaking on behalf of the mem
bers of the Committee's bureau, extended warm con
gratulations to the legations of the Union of Soviet 
Socialist Republics, the Byelorussian Soviet Socialist 
Republic and the Ukrainian Soviet Socialist Republic 
on the occasion of the fiftieth anniversary of the 
October Socialist Revolution. 

The meeting rose at 6.15 p.m. 

77111-0ctober 1968-2,050 


